Public Document Pack

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audiorecorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use
of social media by anyone attending. This does not apply to
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.

Please ask for:
Helen Johnson

4 June 2019
Dear Councillor
You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL to be held on Thursday 13 June 2019 at 7.30
pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts,
AL8 6AE.
Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance
AGENDA
PART 1
1.

SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS
To note any substitution of Panel Members made in accordance with Council
Procedure Rules.

2.

APOLOGIES
To note any apologies.

3.

MINUTES
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on Monday 8 April
2019 (previously circulated).

4.

NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 9
AND ANY ITEMS WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA

5.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS
To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

6.

56 VALLEY ROAD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY - 6/2018/2986/EM - RETENTION
OF FRONT DOOR AND DOUBLE GARAGE DOORS (Pages 5 - 14)
The Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and
Governance) sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management (EM)
Consent for the retention of a front door and double garage doors.

7.

95 UPLANDS, WELWYN GARDEN CITY - 6/2018/1735/EM - ERECTION OF
FRONT PORCH TO REPLACE EXISTING INCLUDING THE REPLACEMENT OF
THE EXISTING FRONT DOOR (Pages 15 - 34)
The report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance)
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the
erection of a front porch and the replacement of the existing front door.

8.

348 HOWLANDS, WELWYN GARDEN CITY - 6/2019/0221/EM - INSTALLATION
OF A REAR DORMER TO FACILITATE THE EXTENSION OF EXISTING LOFT
(Pages 35 - 58)
The report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance)
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the
installation of a rear dormer to facilitate the extension of an existing loft.

9.

SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION

10.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
The Panel is asked to resolve:
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 11 and 12 on the grounds
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined
in Section 100A(3) and Paragraphs 5 (privileged and legal advice) and 6 (statutory
notice or order) Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended).
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the
public interest in disclosing the information.
PART II

11.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN

12.

UPDATE
ON
OUTSTANDING
ENFORCEMENT
CASES
AND
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER THE TERMS OF
THE MANAGEMENT SCHEME FOR WELWYN GARDEN CITY FOR BREACHES
OF THAT SCHEME (Pages 59 - 76)
Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance)

updates Panel Members with regard to outstanding arbitration cases that have
been put before the Panel as well as additional cases for consideration.
Circulation:

Councillors

H.Bower (Chairman)
A.Chesterman
M.Cowan
B.Fitzsimon

F.Marsh
L.Musk
F.Thomson

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Helen
Johnson,
Governance
Services
on
01707
357467
or
email
–
democracy@welhat.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Part I
Main author: Kerrie Charles
Executive Member: Stephen Boulton
Wards: Handside
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL - 13 JUNE 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING
AND GOVERNANCE)
6/2018/2986/EM
56 VALLEY ROAD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL8 7DN
RETENTION OF FRONT DOOR AND DOUBLE GARAGE DOORS
APPLICANT: MRS P & MR D MOORE
1.

Background

1.1 The appeal is against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the
retention of front door and double garage doors. The application (reference:
6/2018/2986/EM) was refused on the 04 February 2019 for the following
reason:
“The design and colour of the proposed front door and garage doors would be
of a poor standard of design that would be out of keeping with the overall
character and appearance of the property and the street scene. Accordingly it
would fail to maintain and enhance the amenities and values of the Garden
City contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme”.
2.

Site Description

2.1 No.56 Valley Road is a two storey link detached dwelling sited amongst similar
type dwellings set with spacious plots and open frontages.
2.2 Properties along Valley Road have a consistent style of fenestration and
architectural detailing. The fenestration is predominately white with a small
number of doors in pale pastel colours.
3.

The Proposal

3.1 The proposal is for the retention of the front door and double garage doors
which are dark grey in colour and of a modern design and appearance.
3.2 The front door is a solid door with a side panel of glass which runs vertically
down the door alongside the door handle.
3.3 The garage doors are two doors which each also include a vertical section of
glass running vertically down the door with a door handle to the side.
4.

Policy

Page 5

4.1. Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008)
EM1 – Extensions and Alterations
5.

Representations Received

5.1. Three representations have been received from Nos. 53, 55 and 57 Valley
Road. To summarise, all three objectors wish for the decision to be withheld
and express concerns relating to the design of the replacement doors and
suggestions of alterations that are mentioned with the Appeal cover letter dated
27 April 2019, which include a change of colour, removal of chrome handles
and adding beading to the glass panel.
6.

Discussion

6.1. This is an appeal against the refusal of EM consent. The appellant’s letter of
appeal is attached at Appendix 1, and the original officer’s report for application
reference 6/2018/2986/EM, is attached at Appendix 2.
6.2. The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact of the proposed
replacement front and garage doors on the values and amenities of the
surrounding area. The impact on the residential amenity of adjoining occupiers
is considered acceptable.
6.3. In recognition of the importance of Welwyn Garden City as a unique town and
in order to protect the amenities and values of the Garden City, the Estate
Management Scheme was set up. The purpose of the Management Scheme
and its importance to homeowners is to ensure that homes and street scenes
are kept in harmony with the original design and concept of the town.
6.4. Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme (EMS) states that extensions
and alterations to existing buildings will only be allowed if they are in keeping
with the design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the
existing building and do not have a detrimental impact on the amenities and
values of the surrounding area.
6.5. The proposed style, design and colour of the front door and garage doors
reflect each other. The style of door found along Valley Road varies, although
the predominant door style is of a more traditional style with some including
Georgian glazing with the door frame painted white. Garage doors are
generally solid and also painted white. However there are a variety of door
colours.
6.6. The style and design of both the front and garage doors are not reflective of the
more traditional style of doors found within Valley Road, which are in contrast to
their more traditional appearance. The addition of the dark grey colour of these
doors emphasises their incongruous style and design. Accordingly the
proposals are considered to be harmful to the overall character and
appearance of the property and the street scene and fail to maintain the values
and amenities of this part of the Garden City.
6.7. A case has been advanced by the appellant in support of their appeal.

Page 6

6.8. The appellant mentions in support of the appeal that; “In the letter, it mentions that the design and colour of the doors are out of
keeping with the appearance of the property and the streetscene. As
mentioned in our letter dated 18th November 2018, there are many different
colours and styles of front and garage doors along Valley Road and the
surrounding Estate Management Area therefore we do not believe that our
doors fail to maintain and enhance the amenities and values of the Garden
City”.
6.9. No evidence has been submitted to support the above claims. However, it is
acknowledged that there are a variety of door colours within the vicinity of the
site. Generally the design of those doors have a more traditional style and
appearance where the colour is in contrast to the traditional white or pale pastel
colour expected in the Garden City. It should be noted however that this
development is unauthorised. Estate Management consent has not been
sought or granted for this development.
6.10. The applicant also states that they have had discussions with the installers
about making alterations to the doors. Details of those alterations have not
been submitted. In any event, any alterations proposed would require a
separate Estate Management application to be made and an assessment made
in that regard.
6.11. Overall it is considered that a compelling case has not been made by the
appellant to demonstrate why the circumstances advanced by the occupants of
this particular property, when considered in its context, should override the
wider values and amenities of Valley and the surrounding street scene. The
development proposed is contrary to the Estate Management scheme and
there is no overriding justification to warrant an approval.
7.

Conclusion

7.1

The proposed front door and garage doors, by virtue of their design, style and
colour, would not be in keeping with the overall character and appearance of
the property or indeed the street scene. They appear as an incongruous
addition to the street scene of the property and Valley Road and fail to maintain
and enhance the amenities and values of the Garden City. Accordingly the
proposal is contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.

8.

Recommendation

8.1. That the Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal.

Name of author

Kerrie Charles

Title

Development Management Officer

Date

9 May 2019

Page 7

Background papers:
Appendix 1: Appellant’s grounds of appeal.
Appendix 2: Original delegated officer’s report

Page 8

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

6/2018/2986/EM
Context
Site and
Application
description

No.56 Valley Road is a two storey link detached dwelling sited amongst similar
type dwellings set within spacious plots and open frontages.
The application is for a replacement garage and front door. The works have
already been carried out. The original white doors with glass panels have
been replaced with “slate” grey solid doors with glass panel.

Constraints
Relevant history

Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act
1967
Planning
Application Number: E/1963/1916/
November 1963
Proposal: Garage and access

Decision: Granted

Decision Date: 26

Application Number: W6/2005/0174/EM
Decision: Refused
Decision
Date: 23 March 2005
Proposal: ERECTION OF PART SINGLE AND PART TWO STOREY REAR
EXTENSION AND EXTENSION TO THE FRONT PAVED AREA.
Application Number: W6/2005/0402/EM
Decision: Granted
Decision
Date: 26 May 2005
Proposal: ERECTION OF PART SINGLE PART TWO STOREY REAR
EXTENSION

Notifications
Neighbour
representations
Summary of
neighbour
responses

Support: 0

Object: 3

Other: 1

 No.55 Valley Road objects to the proposal as they would not match the
existing or the style within the surrounding area.
 No.53 Valley Road objects to the application saying: “The doors that have
been installed are no doubt fine in their place but they are definitely not in
keeping with the Georgian doors and windows elsewhere in the street, or
indeed with the windows in the property itself. The overall architectural
effect is quite discordant”
 Welwyn Garden City Society, has commented saying “The Society concurs
with the opinion that the distinctive design and colours of the new entrance
and garage doors are inappropriate in the context of a distinctive and typical
of the design of this property within the Conservation Area and fails to
improve or enhance the spirit of the EMS.


Consultee
responses
Relevant Policies
EM1

EM2

No.11 The Links, objects to the application “This style is completely out of
keeping with this area”.

None received

EM3

Page 13

Others
Considerations
Design (form,
size, scale, siting)
and Character
(impact upon
amenities and
values of Garden
City)

Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme is relevant and concerns
extensions and alterations. It seeks to preserve the unique architectural
heritage of the town and its buildings and only allows extensions and
alterations if they are in keeping with the design, appearance, materials and
architectural detailing used in the existing building and do not have a
detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the surrounding area or the
residential amenity of adjoining occupiers.
The design of doors within properties within the vicinity of the site include a
more traditional style with large amounts of glazing which are replicated on the
garage. They have a relatively consistent appearance and design which does
not detract from the overall character and appearance of the property or Valley
Road
With regard to the design of the proposed front door and replacement garage
door, these would be solid grey with glass panel of modern design. It would
include one thin rectangular singular glazing panel to the centre with large door
handles. Its overall design and appearance, together with the change of
colour and material cumulatively would introduce an inappropriate and
incongruous addition to the property, which would fail to match the design and
style of other front doors. It would not respect or relate to the architectural
style of the property or the area and would therefore visually alter the
appearance of the dwelling, and would be detrimental to the visual amenity of
the street scene.
Overall the design and appearance of the proposed doors would have a
detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the property and this part of
the Estate Management Area. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy
EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.

Impact on
There would be no impact to neighbouring properties.
neighbours
Landscaping
N/A
issues (incl.
hardstandings)
Any other
N/A
considerations
Conclusion
The proposed replacement front and garage door designs would fail to maintain and enhance the
amenities and values of the Garden City and therefore fails to comply with Policy EM1 of the Estate
Management Scheme.

Page 14

Agenda Item 7
Part I
Author: Emily Stainer
Executive Member: Stephen Boulton
Wards: Sherrards
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL – 13 JUNE 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING
AND GOVERNANCE)
6/2018/1735/EM
95 UPLANDS WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL8 7EH
ERECTION OF FRONT PORCH TO REPLACE EXISTING INCLUDING THE
REPLACEMENT OF THE EXISTING FRONT DOOR

APPLICANT: Mrs C Kiernan
1.

Background

1.1 The appeal is against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the
erection of a front porch and replacement of the existing front door. The
application (reference: 6/2018/1735/EM) was refused on the 15 th November
2018 for the following reason:
“The proposed front porch would not be in keeping with the original planned
design of porches along the row of the application site and its immediate
context and would be detrimental to the amenities and values of the existing
area. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to Policy EM1 of the Welwyn
Garden City Estates Management Scheme.”
2.

Site Description

2.1. The appeal site is a two storey end terrace dwelling house, located on the
northern side of Uplands; close to the junction with Holly Walk. The property is
finished with facing brickwork, a pitched pantile roof and white windows and
door frames. Estate Management consent has been granted previously for the
formation of a driveway.
2.2. The dwelling is located in a row of 4 terrace houses. The porches in this row of
terraces all feature an open canopy over the front door, of either flat or pitched
roof design.
2.3. Surrounding properties also follow a comparable design and appearance with
similar architectural features, although it is noted that individual rows of terrace
properties or semi-detached properties, have some differences, including front
porches and projecting garages.
3.

The Proposal

Page 15

3.1. The applicant’s proposal is for the erection of a front porch to replace the
existing canopy, including the replacement of the existing front door.
3.2. The proposed front porch would measure approximately 2.1 metres in height,
1.9 metres in width and 1 metre in depth.
3.3. The front door would be replaced with a UPVC door of a simple design. The
colour of the proposed door has not been specified.
3.4. This application sought to overcome the concerns raised from a previous
application for a front porch (reference 6/2017/2435/EM). That application was
refused on the 29th December 2017, on the basis that it would not be in keeping
with the set of terraced properties and consequently would fail to retain the
character of the Estate Management Scheme.
3.5. The alterations made from that proposal to this proposal include;




4.

The width of the porch has increased from 1450mm to 1900mm.
The proposed materials have been altered to brickwork to match the
existing dwelling.
The size of the side window has been reduced.
The design of the front door has been changed.

Policies

4.1. Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008)
EM1 – Extensions and Alterations
5.

Relevant Estate Management History

5.1. 6/2017/2435/EM Erection of front porch – Refused 19 December 2017
“The proposed front porch would not be in keeping with the original planned
design of porches along the row of the application site and its immediate
context, detrimental to the amenities and values of the existing area.
Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to Policy EM1 of the Welwyn Garden City
Estates Management Scheme.”
6.

Representations Received

6.1. 94 Uplands – No objection has been raised.
7.

Discussion

7.1. This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent. The
appellant’s letter of appeal is attached at Appendix 1. The officer’s report for
application reference 6/2017/2435/EM is attached at Appendix 2, and the report
for application reference 6/2018/1735/EM, is attached at Appendix 3.
Photographs submitted by the appellant are attached at Appendix 4.
7.2. The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact of the proposed
porch on the values and amenities of the surrounding area. The impact on the
residential amenity of adjoining occupiers is considered to be acceptable.

Page 16

7.3. In recognition of the importance of Welwyn Garden City as a unique town and
in order to protect the amenities and values of the Garden City, the Estate
Management Scheme was set up. The purpose of the Management Scheme
and its importance to homeowners is to ensure that homes and street scenes
are kept in harmony with the original design and concept of the town.
7.4. Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme (EMS) states that extensions
and alterations to existing buildings will only be allowed if they are in keeping
with the design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the
existing building and do not have a detrimental impact on the amenities and
values of the surrounding area.
7.5. The appeal property is a two storey, end terrace dwelling located within a
terrace of 4 similarly designed properties. The property, along with the three
other terrace dwellings it adjoins, were designed with distinctive architectural
features (such as fenestrations, chimneys and flat roofed open canopies over
the front door). Some of these original features have slowly been eroded as the
two mid terrace properties have introduced replacement canopies with pitched
roofs. Historic records indicate that these works do not have consent under the
Estate Management Scheme. The introduction of pitched roof canopies present
some harm to the terrace and immediate area, but it is considered that the
original Welwyn Garden City design and character has been sufficiently
maintained.
7.6. Whilst this row of terrace properties are similar to other properties in the
immediate locality, each row of terraces or pair of semi-detached properties
have distinct architectural features which are not always replicated in other
rows. The original features of some of the existing dwellings include projecting
single storey garages and porch elements, but each row or pair must be
assessed independently of one another.
7.7. Policy EM1 aims for alterations to be in keeping with the existing property and
to not harm the values and amenities of the area. It is therefore important that
the uniformity in appearance of dwellings is maintained; in particular those
features which are visible from the street scene. This part of Uplands contains
buildings whose architectural features contribute positively to the streetscene.
As described above, there is a strong uniformity of appearance of properties in
this part of Uplands and this positively enhances the character and appearance
of the surrounding area and Welwyn Garden City in general.
7.8. The existing appeal property does not have a front porch and features the
original flat roof canopy over the front door, supported by posts, maintaining the
original architectural features. This design is replicated at No.101 Uplands,
which forms the alternate end of the terrace.
7.9. In contrast, the proposed front porch would be brick built and enclosed,
extending across a sizeable proportion of the front of the dwelling and
projecting beyond the existing front elevation. The porch, because of its solid,
closed design, would not reflect the prevailing style of open canopies in the
area. It would appear as a large and bulky addition which be at odds with the
architectural appearance of the property and the area. Accordingly it is

Page 17

considered that it introduces a discordant and incongruous addition that
detracts from the character and appearance of the host dwelling, the rest of the
terrace it is located in, and the wider streetscene.
7.10. A case has been advanced by the appellant in support of their appeal. This
includes;
1.

Following the first refusal, the porch was redesigned to a brick structure
with small side windows and a front door in keeping with the Garden City
design principles.

2.

Historically, porches have been permitted across the Monkswood and
Uplands Estate (as evidenced in photographs included in both the appeal
and the applications).

3.

Examples of applications which have been granted consent during the
period of time between the two applications, as well as a side extension
which was granted in February 2018 opposite the application site.

7.11. With regard to point 1, the original application proposed an enclosed front
porch, to be finished with white UPVC cladding. It was refused on the grounds
that the porch would not be in keeping with the original planned design of
porches along the row of the application site and its immediate context.
Comparatively, the revised porch would be the same height and depth,
however the width would be increased from 1450mm to 1900mm. It would be
finished with brickwork to match the dwelling and UPVC doors and windows.
Extensions to dwellings in the Estate Management Scheme require materials to
match the existing property, and this aspect is looked upon favourably.
Nonetheless, this benefit does not outweigh the previous reason for refusal that
the principle of an enclosed front porch was considered to be unacceptable.
7.12. No concerns are raised with regard to the front door. The colour of the
proposed door was not included as part of the application, but in the event of
the appeal being allowed, a suitable condition could be imposed to ensure that
it is white.
7.13. With regard to point 2, photographs have been provided by the appellant to
demonstrate examples of approved extensions in the area. These are attached
at Appendix 4. Firstly, the appellant refers to a front porch at 47 Uplands. It is
acknowledged that while this porch was approved under the scheme in 1997
(reference W6/1997/5111/EM), the addition has removed an original feature
which has diluted the character of the terrace and immediate area. The
presence of this porch is not considered to be a reason to justify a significant
alteration to the porch canopy at the application site, which would further dilute
the original Welwyn Garden City design and character. It is also worth noting
that the application at No.47 pre-dated the Estate Management policies which
were introduced in 2008, with the aim of simplifying the scheme by creating a
set of policies to guide decision making.

Page 18

7.14. In addition, a photograph of a single storey front extension on Uplands has
been submitted. The photograph does not indicate the house number and
therefore the location is unknown. Examples including a single storey side
extension at 96 Uplands, and a garage conversion on Knightsfield have also
been highlighted. These developments were not for the erection of a front
porch, providing limited weight in favour of the proposal.
7.15. Point 3 refers to examples of applications which have been granted consent
during the period of time between the first and the second Estate Management
application. The examples referred to primarily involve works to the rear of the
dwellings, which do not impact the front elevation directly. Limited weight can
therefore be given when drawing a comparison between the schemes.
7.16. Overall, it is considered that a compelling case has not been made by the
appellant to demonstrate why the circumstances advanced by the occupants of
this particular property, when considered in its context, should override the
wider values and amenities of Uplands and the surrounding streetscene.
8.

Conclusion

8.1. The proposal would fail to enhance the appearance of the existing property
given its enclosed design, which would appear out of keeping with the host
dwelling and the surrounding terrace of properties. It would form an overly
dominant form to the front of the dwelling which is unacceptable and
detrimental to the values and amenities of the appeal property, the row of
terraces and the surrounding streetscape. Accordingly, the proposal would be
contrary to Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.
9.

Recommendation

9.1. That the Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal.

Author

Emily Stainer

Title

Development Management Officer

Date

16 May 2019

Background papers:
Appendix 1: Appellant’s grounds of appeal
Appendix 2: Original delegated officer’s report
Appendix 3: Delegated officer’s report for the application subject to this appeal
Appendix 4: Appellant’s photographs

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 21

Page 22

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE
DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No:
Location:
Proposal:
Officer:

6/2017/2425/EM
95 Uplands Welwyn Garden City AL8 7EH
Erection of front porch
Mrs Kerrie Charles

Recommendation:

Refused

6/2017/2425/EM
Context
Site and
Application
description

No.95 is an end of terrace dwelling with vehicular hardstanding on the frontage
and part soft landscaped.
The proposal is for a single storey front porch. The porch will measure 1.4m
wide, 2.1m in height and 0.95m in depth.

Constraints
Relevant history

Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act
1967
Planning
Application Number: W6/1998/5099/EM
Decision: Granted
Date: 18 May 1998
Proposal: Formation of a vehicle crossover and hardstanding

Notifications
Neighbour
representations
Summary of
neighbour
responses
Consultee
responses
Relevant Policies
EM1
Others

EM2

Considerations
Design (form,
size, scale, siting)
and Character
(impact upon
amenities and
values of Garden
City)

Support: 0

Object: 0

Decision

Other: 0

None received

None received

EM3

The application site is sited within a row of terrace dwellings and all of similar
architectural style and open canopy porches which is a familiar feature within
the Estate Management Scheme.
The proposal is to form an enclosed porch.
It is considered that the porch would not be in keeping within the set of terrace
properties and would be detrimental to the character of the streetscene.

Page 23

There are examples of enclosed porches in nearby residential roads but not
within this locality and therefore the proposal would fail to retain the character
of the Estate Management Scheme.
The porch is not considered to have any impact on neighbouring properties.

Impact on
neighbours
Landscaping
N/A
issues (incl.
hardstandings)
Any other
N/A
considerations
Conclusion
The proposed front porch would not be in keeping with the original planned design of porches along
the row of the application site and its immediate context, detrimental to the amenities and values of
the existing area. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to Policy EM1 of the Welwyn Garden City
Estates Management Scheme.
Reasons for Refusal:
1.

The proposed front porch would not be in keeping with the original planned design
of porches along the row of the application site and its immediate context,
detrimental to the amenities and values of the existing area. Accordingly, the
proposal is contrary to Policy EM1 of the Welwyn Garden City Estates
Management Scheme.

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS
2.
Plan
Number
CK/95/01
CK/95/02
CK/95/03

Revision
Number

Details

Received Date

Existing & Proposed Plans
Block Plan
Site Location Plan

3 November 2017
6 November 2017
3 November 2017

Determined By:
Mr Chris Carter
29 December 2017

2 of 2
Page 24

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE
DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No:
Location:
Proposal:
Officer:

6/2018/1735/EM
95 Uplands Welwyn Garden City AL8 7EH
Erection of front porch to replace existing including the
replacement of the existing front door
Ms Emily Stainer

Recommendation:

Refused

6/2018/1735/EM
Context
Site and
Application
description

Constraints
Relevant history

The application site is an end of terrace dwelling with a hardstanding and soft
landscaping to the front. The proposal is for the erection of an enclosed front
porch to replace the existing style which is open with a roof canopy. It would
also include the replacement of the front door. An Estate Management
application for a similar proposal was refused last year (reference
6/2017/2425/EM) as the porch would not be in keeping with the original
planned design of porches along the row of the application site and its
immediate context.
Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act
1967
Application Number: W6/2000/0207/EM
Decision: Granted
Decision Date: 10 April 2000
Proposal: Formation of vehicle crossover and hardstanding
Application Number: 6/2017/2425/EM
Decision: Refused
Decision Date: 29 December 2017
Proposal: Erection of front porch

Notifications
Neighbour
representations
Summary of
neighbour
responses
Consultee
responses

EM1
Others

EM2

Support: 0

Object: 0

None

None

EM3

Considerations

Page 25

Other: 0

Design (form,
size, scale, siting)
and Character
(impact upon
amenities and
values of Garden
City)

Policy EM1 states that extensions and alterations to existing properties will
only be allowed if they are in keeping with the design, appearance, materials
and architectural detailing used in the existing building and do not have a
detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the surrounding area or the
residential amenity of adjoining occupiers. This revised scheme seeks
permission for a similar proposal to the previous application. The proposed
porch would still be located on the front elevation, however it has been
increased in size from 1450mm to 1900mm in width. The height and depth of
the porch remain the same, while the proposed side window has been reduced
slightly.
The previous application proposed the porch to be constructed of white UPVC
framing, doors and cladding. This application seeks consent for a porch made
of matching face brickwork with UPVC doors and windows. The style of door
proposed has been changed from the Georgian glazing in the previous
application to a more simple design. The front doors within Uplands are
uniform in colour, but there are a variety of designs nonetheless and as a
result it is considered that providing that the colour would be white, the design
would be acceptable. The colour of the proposed door and window has not
been stated as part of the application, however if the application was to be
recommended for approval a suitable condition could be imposed to ensure
that the colour was white. The materials would match those of the existing
dwelling and the design in this regard is acceptable, however it does not
outweigh the previous reason for refusal which has not been addressed.
Within the streetscene, the dwellings typically feature an open entrance at the
front of the property with a canopy above the front door. The introduction of an
enclosed front porch (which is larger than the previous proposal) would create
an incongruous addition to the front of the property which would be visible from
the street scene. While there are exceptions to the design within the area as
noted by the applicant, the majority of the examples used have not sought
permission under the Estate Management Scheme. The examples therefore
provide little weight in favour of the scheme and the proposal would
consequently still alter the symmetry of the streetscene. As a result it is not
considered that the previous reasons for refusal have been addressed and the
proposal fails to comply with Policy EM1.

Impact on
neighbours

No objections have been received from adjoining occupiers. The proposed
porch would not have a detrimental impact upon the outlook of neighbours or
result in any harmful loss of residential amenity to the occupiers of
neighbouring properties.

Landscaping
issues (incl.
hardstandings)
Any other
considerations
Conclusion

None

None

The previous reasons for refusal have not been addressed and as a result, the proposed front porch
would not be in keeping with the street scene and its immediate context and would be detrimental to
the amenities and values of the existing area. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to Policy EM1 of
the Welwyn Garden City Estates Management Scheme.

2 of 3
Page 26

Reasons for Refusal:
1.

The proposed front porch would not be in keeping with the original planned design
of porches along the row of the application site and its immediate context and
would be detrimental to the amenities and values of the existing area. Accordingly,
the proposal is contrary to Policy EM1 of the Welwyn Garden City Estates
Management Scheme.

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS
2.
Plan
Number
CK/95/02
Location
Plan
Block Plan
CK/95/05
and 06

Revision
Number
1

Details

Received Date

Existing And Proposed Plans
Location Plan

2 July 2018
2 July 2018

Block Plan
Existing And Proposed Floor
Plans

2 July 2018
2 October 2018

Determined By:
Mr Michael Robinson
26 November 2018

3 of 3
Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 29

Page 30

Page 31

Page 32

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Part 1
Author: Sarah Madyausiku
Executive Member: Stephen Boulton
Wards: Howlands
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL – 13 JUNE 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING
AND GOVERNANCE)
6/2019/0221/EM
348 HOWLANDS WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL7 4HD
INSTALLATION OF 1 X REAR DORMER TO FACILITATE EXTENSION OF
EXISTING LOFT
APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs B Walton
1

Background

1.1 The appeal is against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the
Installation of 1 x rear dormer to facilitate extension of existing loft. The
application (reference: 6/2019/0221/EM) was refused on the 28 March 2019 for
the following reason:
“The rear dormer window would be unacceptable by virtue of its width, height,
scale and siting on the rear roof slope of the dwelling which is overtly visible
from an number of properties in the area and from the public footpath to the
east. The dormer would result in a visually discordant and incongruous feature
that would be detrimental to the appearance of the house and wider area,
failing to maintain and enhance the amenities and values of the Garden City in
accordance with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme”.
2

Site Description

2.1 The appeal site is a two storey mid terrace dwelling house, located on the north
side of Howlands. The application property is located within a row of 13
terraced houses. The rear of this terrace, and the appeal property itself, is open
to public views from a public footpath that runs across the rear of the terrace to
the east.
2.2 None of the 13 terraced houses in this group have dormer windows.
3

The Proposal and Background

Page 35

3.1 The appellant’s proposal is to install a rear dormer to facilitate the extension of
existing loft. The proposed rear dormer window would measure at
approximately 5.2m in width and be set in 0.74m on the west side and 0.94m
on the east side of the party walls of the adjoining properties. Its height would
be at the ridge height of the main roof and not set down.
3.2 This proposal is identical to an application that was refused EM consent in
September 2018 (ref: 6/2018/1861/EM). This September 2018 proposal was
heard by the EM Scheme Panel on the 31 January 2019.
3.3 The Panel resolved to uphold the original decision and dismiss the appeal. The
Panel decision is included as Appendix 1. The Council’s appeal statement is
included as Appendix 2.
3.4 The appellants then submitted an identical application because they wished for
it to be determined and then have another opportunity to have the case heard
at the appeal’s panel.
3.5 The appellants were advised to alter the proposal to try to overcome the reason
for refusal before taking it back to any appeals panel, but this advice was not
taken on board.
3.6 It should be emphasised that a previous consent in July 2018 allowed for two
separate smaller rear dormers that would achieve a similar room layout
(bedroom and en-suite) as that required by the appellants. The rear elevation
for the two rear dormers as approved is included as Appendix 3.
3.7 The appellants were advised that they can implement this July 2018 consent,
nevertheless, they wish to have more usable space, so wish to progress the
proposal for an elongated dormer window.
4

Policy

4.1 Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008) -EM1 – Extensions and
Alterations.
4.2 In order to be able to respond to the large amounts of requests for roof
alterations and energy efficiency measures such as Solar PV panels, following
public consultation the council has approved a Policy approach with the
Welwyn Garden Estate Management scheme areas to deal with roof alteration
as follows:




Estate Management Consent will only be granted for energy efficiency
measure and other roof alterations where they area sited on the rear or side
roof slope and are sited to minimise the effect on the external appearance of
the building.
Estate Management Consent will only be granted if the proposed alteration,
when viewed from any surrounding public vantage point does not have a

Page 36

detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the street scene and
the wider amenities and values of the area.


5

Exceptions to this Policy approach will apply where, in the judgement of the
case officer the architectural design and style of an individual property or the
wider character of the area means that an alteration on a principle roof slope
of a property would not have a detrimental impact on the character and
appearance of the street scene and wider amenities and values of the area. In
all cases the decision maker will continue to weigh the environmental benefits
of energy efficiency measures against the visual impact.
Representations Received

5.1 No representations have been received.
6

Planning History

6.1 Application Number: 6/2018/1326/EM Decision: Granted Decision Date: 09 July
2018. Proposal: Construction of 2 x rear dormer windows to facilitate extension
of existing loft conversion.
6.2 Application Number: 6/2018/1861/EM Decision: Refused Decision Date: 27
September 2018. Proposal: Installation of 1 x rear dormer to facilitate extension
of existing loft.
This refusal was upheld by the EM Panel in January 2019 and this decision
holds significant weight in the consideration of this appeal. This appeal
proposal is identical to this refused proposal.
6.3 Application Number: 6/2018/2889/EM Decision: Refused Decision Date: 19
December 2018. Proposal: Installation of 1x rear dormer window to existing loft
conversion. This proposed dormer had a slight decrease in width compared to
the previous refusals.
7

Discussion

7.1 This is an appeal against the refusal of EM consent. The appellant’s grounds of
appeal is attached at Appendix 4, and the original officer’s report for application
ref: 6/2019/0221/EM, is attached at Appendix 5.
7.2 The decision of the EM Panel in January 2019 to refuse application ref:
6/2019/0221/EM included as Appendix 1. The decision of the Panel should hold
significant weight in this assessment. Since the January 2019 appeal decision,
policy has not changed, the application proposal remains unchanged and no
other no other dormer windows have been granted consent within this row of 13
terraced houses.

Page 37

7.3 The key issues in the determination of this appeal are:



Would the proposed elongated rear dormer harm the amenities and values of
the surrounding area; and
Should a different view be taken to that of the January 2019 Panel.

7.4 The impact on the residential amenity of adjoining occupiers is considered
acceptable.
7.5 In recognition of the importance of Welwyn Garden City as a unique town and
in order to protect the amenities and values of the Garden City, the Estate
Management Scheme was set up. The purpose of the Management Scheme
and its importance to homeowners is to ensure that homes and street scenes
are kept in harmony with the original design and concept of the town.
7.6 Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme (EMS) states that extensions
and alterations to existing buildings will only be allowed if they are in keeping
with the design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the
existing building and do not have a detrimental impact on the amenities and
values of the surrounding area.
7.7 The appeal property is located within a terrace of 13 similarly designed
properties. None of these properties have rear dormer windows. This property
would be the first to have such an alteration in this group of 13.
7.8 Policy EM1 aims for alterations to be in keeping with the existing property and
not harm the values and amenities of the area. It is therefore essential that the
uniformity in appearance of dwellings is maintained; in particular those features
which are visible from the street scene.
7.9 The refusal relates to the unacceptable width, scale and sitting of the proposed
elongated dormer on the rear roof. In the Garden City, for roof alterations such
as dormer windows, the Council has approved a new policy approach within the
EM area which includes that consent will only be granted if the proposed
alteration, when viewed from any surrounding public vantage point does not
have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the street scene
and the wider amenities and values of the area.
7.10 The quality of the architecture in this terrace of 13 dwellings has been
maintained. As with the previous EM appeal report attached as Appendix 2,
Officers maintain that the views of the rear roofslope of the appeal property and
its neighbours are readily visible from the public footpath to the east of the site
and therefore an elongated dormer across most of the rear of the appeal
property would be very apparent causing significant harm to the amenities and
values of the area.

Page 38

7.11 It is of note that in July 2018 an application which assessed two individual and
smaller dormer windows covering less of the rear roof slope was approved. The
approved rear elevation is attached as Appendix 3.
7.12 The consent remains extant. In the officer’s report in July 2018 it was stated:
“The appearance isn’t overbearing to the rear as two smaller dormers are
proposed rather than one large dormer on a mid-terrace dwelling”. It is clear
from this assessment that a larger dormer was not considered appropriate
here.
7.13 Rather than two individual dormer windows as approved in July 2018, the
introduction of one elongated rear dormer would represent a more dominating
form of development to the rear roofslope of this property. The elongated
dormer would not read as a subordinate roof form within the rear roof slope of
the terrace as a whole. It would be more visible, given its more solid and
unbroken form and is considered to be harmful to the amenities and values of
the property itself and to the wider surrounding area.
7.14 This was the view of the Panel on the 31 January 2019 in relation to the
previous identical proposal. This Panel decision is a consideration in the
determination of this appeal and it is advised that no decision should be taken
that would conflict with the decision of the January 2019 Panel.
7.15 A case has been further advanced by the appellants from their previous appeal
in support of the application. This includes photographs of 9 examples of a
dormer windows. One on Howlands, one on Sandpit Road, one on Hollybush
Lane, four on Great Ley and two in Great Ganett. The specific numbers of
these properties have not been given.
7.16 It is important to note that none of these examples are for dormers at the
appeal site or within the row of 13 terraced properties that make up this group.
These examples are not within Howlands where this appeal is and therefore
they are not relevant.
7.17 Nevertheless, the two examples cited by the appellant at Sandpit Road (no.13)
and Hollybush Lane (no.112) are both the subject of enforcement investigation.
The four examples at Great Ley do not appear to benefit from EM Consent.
There is no record of EM Consent being granted for any dormer windows with
the EM area of Howlands, other than the double dormer windows approved at
the appellants property.
7.18 Officers are aware of consent being granted for elongated dormers in Great
Ganett within the EM area. However, each case must be considered on its own
merits and the examples provided by the appellants are not located within the
same group of terraced properties as the application site and are not directly
comparable situations and so should not hold significant weight in any
assessment.

Page 39

7.19 It is considered that one elongated dormer would be more visually intrusive
than two separate dormer given its larger size and more solid and bulky form.
From the public view point to the rear, the more solid roof form of the elongated
dormer on the appeal property and as part of the terrace as a whole would be
very apparent and would result in a more dominating form of development.
7.20 In addition, the height of the elongated dormer would be at the ridge height of
the main roof and not set down. This is an unwelcome design. It is good design
practice to set any such roof additions down from the main roof ridge so that
the addition can read as a subordinate element on the roof slope.
7.21 The appellants comment on this design by saying “We are unable to have a
pitched roof or lower the roof line further, as we are already having to lower first
floor ceilings inside the property to allow for enough headroom in the loft room.
Every millimetre will count. The room will be fairly small inside and the design of
a straight across dormer will make such a huge difference to us inside the
house, giving us that little bit more space”.
7.22 However, it is considered that such a dormer is not appropriate and should not
be allowed for the sake of internal modifications.
7.23 The appellants also confirm that they would be happy to tile the dormer using
matching materials as the existing roof.
7.24 Although this would promote good design practices, the materials would not
take away the excessive bulk of such and elongated dormer as proposed.
7.25 A compelling case has not been made by the appellants to demonstrate why
the circumstances advanced by the occupants of this particular property, when
considered in its context, should override the wider values and amenities of this
part of Howlands and the surrounding streetscene. They have also not
expanded upon their reasons so that the Panel should take a different view to
that which was agreed at a very recent Panel on 31 January 2019.
7.26 The fall-back position of two separate dormer windows is considered a more
appropriate form of development for this terrace.
8

Conclusion

8.1 The proposal remains unchanged to the proposal that was refused EM consent
by a recent Panel on the 31 January 2019. This Panel decision holds significant
weight in this assessment.
8.2 The proposed elongated rear dormer window would be unacceptable by virtue
of its width, scale and siting on the rear roof slope of the dwelling which is
overtly visible from an number of properties in the area and from the public

Page 40

9

footpath to the east. The dormer would result in a visually discordant and
incongruous feature that would be detrimental to the appearance of the house
and wider area, failing to maintain and enhance the amenities and values of the
Garden City in accordance with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management
Scheme.
Recommendation

9.1 That the Members uphold the previous Panel decision of the 31 January 2019
in light of the fact that there have been no changes to the proposal before them
and that there has been no change in policy that would result in a different
decision being made to conflict with the Panel decision of the 31 January 2019.
9.2 The appeal should be dismissed.

Author:

Sarah Madyausiku

Title:

Development Management Officer

Date

23 May 2019

Background papers:
Appendix 1: EM Panel decision dated 31 January 2019 for the previous identical
proposal ref: 6/2018/1861/EM
Appendix 2: EM Panel appeal statement for the previous identical proposal ref:
6/2018/1861/EM
Appendix 3: The July 2018 consent for two rear dormers- approved elevation
Appendix 4: Appellant’s grounds of appeal
Appendix 5: Original delegated officer’s report for ref: 6/2019/0221/EM

Page 41

Page 42

Colin Haigh
Head of Planning
Reply To: address as below
Direct Tel: 01707 357000
Email: planning@welhat.gov.uk

Mrs Tara Walton & Mr Boe Walton
348 Howlands
Welwyn Garden City
AL7 4HD

31 January 2019

LEASEHOLD REFORM ACT 1967
Dear Mr & Mrs B Walton,
Application Reference: 6/2018/1861/EM
Proposed development at: 348 Howlands Welwyn Garden City AL7 4HD
Proposal: Installation of 1 x rear dormer to facilitate extension of existing loft
Further to our recent correspondence regarding your appeal against the refusal of
Estate Management consent, this is to confirm that your appeal was heard on 30
January 2019.
The Panel took into careful consideration the points raised in your letter and any
attached photographs/documents. After debate and deliberation the Panel resolved
to uphold the original decision and dismiss the appeal confirming the reasons for
refusal set out in the previous decision notice dated 27 September 2018. If you
would like to discuss alternative options leading to the submission of a revised
application please contact Mrs Sarah Madyausiku on 01707 357378.
Yours sincerely

Mrs Sarah Madyausiku
Development Management Officer

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

Part I
Main Author: Sarah Madyausiku
Executive Member: Stephen Boulton
Wards: Howlands

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ESTATE MANAGEMENT SCHEME PANEL - 30 January 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING
AND GOVERNANCE)
6/2018/1861/EM
348 HOWLANDS WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL7 4HD
INSTALLATION OF 1 X REAR DORMER TO FACILITATE EXTENSION OF
EXISTING LOFT
APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs B Walton

1.

Background

1.1 The appeal is against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the
Installation of 1 x rear dormer to facilitate extension of existing loft. The
application (reference: 6/2018/1861/EM) was refused on the 27 September
2018 for the following reason:
“The rear dormer window would be unacceptable by virtue of its width, scale
and siting on the rear roof slope of the dwelling which is overtly visible from an
number of properties in the area and from the public footpath to the east. The
dormer would result in a visually discordant and incongruous feature that would
be detrimental to the appearance of the house and wider area, failing to
maintain and enhance the amenities and values of the Garden City in
accordance with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme”.
2.

Site Description

2.1 The application site is a two storey mid terrace dwelling house, located on the
north side of Howlands. The application property is located within a row of 13
terraced houses. The rear of this terrace, and the appeal property itself, is open
to public views from a public footpath that runs across the rear of the terrace to
the east.
3.

The Proposal

3.1 The applicant’s proposal is to install a rear dormer to facilitate the extension of
existing loft. The proposed rear dormer window would measure at

Page 45

approximately 5.2m in width and be set in 0.74m on the west side and 0.94m
on the east side of the party walls of the adjoining properties.
Its height would be at the ridge height of the main roof and not set down.
4.

Policy

4.1. Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008)
EM1 – Extensions and Alterations
5.

Representations Received

5.1. No representations have been received.
6.

Planning History

6.1 6/2018/1362/EM- July 2018 consent for the construction of 2 x rear dormer
windows to facilitate extension of existing loft conversion.
7.

Discussion

7.1. This is an appeal against the refusal of EM consent. The appellant’s letter of
appeal is attached at Appendix 1, and the original officer’s report for application
reference 6/2018/1861/EM, is attached at Appendix 2.
7.2. The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact of the proposed
rear dormer on the amenities and values of the surrounding area. The impact
on the residential amenity of adjoining occupiers is considered acceptable.
7.3. In recognition of the importance of Welwyn Garden City as a unique town and
in order to protect the amenities and values of the Garden City, the Estate
Management Scheme was set up. The purpose of the Management Scheme
and its importance to homeowners is to ensure that homes and street scenes
are kept in harmony with the original design and concept of the town.
7.4. Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme (EMS) states that extensions
and alterations to existing buildings will only be allowed if they are in keeping
with the design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the
existing building and do not have a detrimental impact on the amenities and
values of the surrounding area.
7.5. The appeal property is located within a terrace of 13 similarly designed
properties. None of these properties have rear dormer windows. This property
would be the first to have such an alteration in this group of 13.
7.6. Policy EM1 aims for alterations to be in keeping with the existing property and
not harm the values and amenities of the area. It is therefore essential that the
uniformity in appearance of dwellings is maintained; in particular those features
which are visible from the street scene.
7.7. The refusal relates to the unacceptable width, scale and sitting of the proposed
elongated dormer on the rear roof. In the Garden City for roof alterations such

Page 46

as dormer windows, the Council has approved a new policy approach within the
EM area which includes that consent will only be granted if the proposed
alteration, when viewed from any surrounding public vantage point does not
have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the street scene
and the wider amenities and values of the area.
7.8. The quality of the architecture in this terrace of 13 dwellings has generally been
maintained and it is of note that in July 2018, an application, which assessed
two individual and smaller dormer windows covering less of the rear roof slope
was approved. The approved rear elevation is attached as Appendix 3.
7.9. Although not implemented, the consent remains extant. In the officer’s report in
July 2018 it was stated: The proposed rear dormers would not be visible from
public vantage points. The appearance isn’t overbearing to the rear as two
smaller dormers are proposed rather than one large dormer on a mid-terrace
dwelling. It is clear from this assessment that a larger dormer was not
considered appropriate here.
7.10. Rather than two individual dormer windows as approved in July 2018, the
introduction of a one elongated rear dormer would represent a more dominating
form of development to the rear roofslope of this property. The elongated
dormer would not read as a subordinate roof form within the rear roof slope of
the terrace as a whole. It would be more visible, given its more solid and
unbroken form and is considered to be harmful to the amenities and values of
the property itself and to the wider surrounding area.
7.11. Views of the rear roofslope of the appeal property and its neighbours are
readily visible from the public footpath to the east of the site and therefore an
elongated dormer across most of the rear of the appeal property would be very
apparent causing significant harm to the amenities and values of the area.
7.12. A case has been advanced by the appellant in support of their appeal. This
includes photographs of 3 examples of a dormer windows. Two in Great Ganett
and one in Howlands. The specific numbers of these properties have not been
given, but your officers are aware of consent being granted for elongated
dormers in Great Ganett within the EM area. However, each case must be
considered on its own merits and the examples provided by the appellant are
not located within the same group of terraced properties and are not directly
comparable situations and so should not hold significant weight in any
assessment.
7.13. In addition, photographs of the rear of the appeal site are provided by the
applicant. The appellant states that “it would be no visual difference in the two
separate dormers or one single dormer”.
7.14. It is considered that one elongated dormer would be more visually intrusive
than two separate dormer given its larger size and more solid and bulky form.
From this public view point to the rear, the more solid roof form of the elongated
dormer on the appeal property and as part of the terrace as a whole would be
very apparent and would result in a more dominating form of development.

Page 47

7.15. In addition, the height of the elongated dormer would be at the ridge height of
the main roof and not set down. This is an unwelcome design. It is good design
practice to set any such roof additions down from the main roof ridge so that
the addition can read as a subordinate element on the roof slope.
7.16. The appellant comments on this design by saying “We are unable to have a
pitched roof or lower the roof line further, as we are already having to lower first
floor ceilings inside the property to allow for enough headroom in the loft room.
Every millimetre will count. The room will be fairly small inside and the design
of a straight across dormer will make such a huge difference to us inside the
house, giving us that little bit more space”. However, it is considered that such
a dormer is not appropriate and should not be allowed for the sake of internal
modifications.
7.17. A compelling case has not been made by the appellant to demonstrate why the
circumstances advanced by the occupants of this particular property, when
considered in its context, should override the wider values and amenities of this
part of Howlands and the surrounding streetscene. The fall-back position of two
separate dormer windows is considered a more appropriate form of
development for this terrace.
8.

Conclusion

8.1. The rear dormer window would be unacceptable by virtue of its width, scale
and siting on the rear roof slope of the dwelling which is overtly visible from an
number of properties in the area and from the public footpath to the east. The
dormer would result in a visually discordant and incongruous feature that would
be detrimental to the appearance of the house and wider area, failing to
maintain and enhance the amenities and values of the Garden City in
accordance with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.
9.

Recommendation

9.1. That the Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal.

Name of author

Sarah Madyausiku 01707 357378

Title

Development Management Officer

Date

20 December 2018

Background papers:
Appendix 1: Appellant’s grounds of appeal
Appendix 2: Original delegated officer’s report
Appendix 3: The July 2018 consent for two rear dormers- approved elevation

Page 48

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

FRONT ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

Page 51
PLAY ROOM

HOME EXTENSION DESIGNS
60 BRIDGE ROAD EAST
WELWYN GARDEN CITY
HERTS AL7 1JU
tel : 01707 393971
fax : 01707 393980
e:stuartc@hed.co.uk

C
BATH
3540

KITCHEN
3540

LOUNGE

C

MASTER BED

BED

1566
ENSUITE
3019

BED-1

BED-2
Project:

348 Howlands, Welwyn Garden City

UP

HALL

C

Drawing Title:

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

LOFT PLAN

ROOF PLAN

PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
AS PROPOSED
Drawn By:

Drg Status:

Drawing No :

Scale:

1:100

Date:

April 2018

PLANNING

Checked:

4416-P01

Revision:

B

This page is intentionally left blank

Emma Graham
From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:

Tara Walton <tarzi@hotmail.co.uk>
28 March 2019 22:12
Planning
Boe Walton
Appeal for 348 Howlands Loft Conversion - application number 6/2019/0221/EM

WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra vigilant when opening
attachments or clicking links.
.

Dear Sir/ Madam,

We would like to appeal the refused decision from the Estate Management Scheme with regards to the single
dormer at 348 Howlands (application number 6/2019/0221/EM). Our previous application (6/2018/1326/EM) was
approved on the 9th July. I have attached both drawings.

The difference between the two applications is the joining of the two dormers to make one larger dormer. The
dormer would not be any wider on the roof, than the original double dormers. The additional space requested
between the two dormers is less than 1.47m.

Refusal has been given on the grounds of the dormer being “overtly visible from a number of properties” “and the
public footpath”. However the same was true of the original plans which have been approved and there have been
no objections from the surrounding neighbours. The rear of the property is not visible from any road at all. There are
a number of properties within the EMS that already have double dormers attached. I have included nine photos of
houses where the full dormers have been completed, within a short walk from our house. These dormers are fully
visible from the main roads. The attachments are saved by their Road Names. One on Howlands, one on Sandpit
Road, one on Hollybush Lane, four on Great Ley, and two Great Gannett. Not only are they overtly visible from a
number properties but also from the public pavements and roads.

We feel the single dormer would be less conspicuous as it would actually cast less shadows on the roof. We would
be happy to tile the dormer, using matching roof tiles to blend in with the existing roof. We will ensure all materials
1

Page 53

are in keeping with the existing building and surrounding area as per Policy EM1. We would be happy to consider
any other suggestions the council may have. In the refused application, we have not changed the size or position of
the windows and we would not be over-looking anyone any more than the original plans.

We are unable to have a pitched roof or lower the roof line further, as we are already having to lower first floor
ceilings inside the property to allow for enough headroom in the loft room. Every millimetre will count. The room
will be fairly small inside and the design of a straight across dormer will make such a huge difference to us inside the
house, giving us that little bit more space. Previously we have been told that the ridge tiles would be too high, but
they have been approved at this height on the separate smaller dormers, which we will be going ahead with
currently. The proposed dormer will not be visible from the front of the house or change the look of the house from
the front in anyway.

The added extension to the house, rather than being “detrimental”, as suggested, would instead be beneficial
adding not only financial value to the house and area but also as a reflection of the values of the Garden City, as an
area for growing families. In its own words, the very purpose of the EMS is 'to be administered for the purpose of
maintaining and enhancing amenities....... with due regard to the convenience and welfare of persons
residing....there'

We hope you will reconsider our application and we look forward to hearing from yourselves.
Yours faithfully,
Mrs Tara Walton and Mr Boe Walton
Mob: 07939 575 818
Home: 01707 390684

Virus-free. www.avg.com

2

Page 54

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE
DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No:
Location:
Proposal:
Officer:

6/2019/0221/EM
348 Howlands Welwyn Garden City AL7 4HD
Installation of 1 x rear dormer to facilitate extension of existing loft
Mrs Sarah Madyausiku

Recommendation:

Refused

6/2019/0221/EM
Context
Site and
Application
description

The application site is a two storey mid terrace dwelling house, located on the
north side of Howlands. The application property is located within a row of 13
terraced houses. The rear of this terrace, and the application property itself, is
open to public views from a public footpath that runs across the rear of the
terrace to the east.
The proposal is to install a rear dormer to facilitate the extension of the loft. The
proposed rear dormer window would measure at approximately 5.2m in width
and be set in 0.74m on the west side and 0.94m on the east side of the party
walls of the adjoining properties.
Its height would be at the ridge height of the main roof.
This proposal is identical to a recent application refused in September 2018 ref:
6/2018/1861/EM. This September 2018 proposal was heard by the Estates
Management Scheme panel in January 2019.
After debate and deliberation the Panel resolved to uphold the original decision
and dismiss the appeal confirming the reasons for refusal set out in the
previous decision notice dated 27 September 2018.
The applicant has submitted the application again because she wishes it to be
determined and then have another opportunity to have the case heard at an
appeals panel.
During the submission, it was explained to the applicant that it would be
advisable to alter the proposal to try to overcome the reasons for refusal before
taking it back to any appeals panel, but this advice was not taken on board.
It should be noted that a previous consent in July 2018 allowed for two
separate smaller rear dormers that would achieve a similar room layout
(bedroom and en-suite) as that required by the applicant. This was re-iterated
to the applicant, however, they wish to have more usable space, so wish to
progress an elongated dormer window.

Constraints

Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act
1967

Page 55

Relevant history
Application Number: 6/2018/1326/EM
Decision: Granted
Decision
Date: 09 July 2018
Proposal: Construction of 2 x rear dormer windows to facilitate extension of
existing loft conversion
Application Number: 6/2018/1861/EM
Decision: Refused
Decision
Date: 27 September 2018
Proposal: Installation of 1 x rear dormer to facilitate extension of existing loft
This current application is identical to this refused proposal.
Application Number: 6/2018/2889/EM
Decision: Refused
Decision
Date: 19 December 2018
Proposal: Installation of 1x rear dormer window to existing loft conversion
Notifications
Neighbour
representations
Summary of
neighbour
responses
Relevant Policies
EM1
Others

EM2

Considerations
Design (form,
size, scale, siting)
and Character
(impact upon
amenities and
values of Garden
City)

Support: 0

Object: 0

Other: 0

None

EM3

1.1. The key issue in the determination of this case is the impact of the
proposed rear dormer on the amenities and values of the surrounding
area. The impact on the residential amenity of adjoining occupiers is
considered acceptable.
1.2. In recognition of the importance of Welwyn Garden City as a unique town
and in order to protect the amenities and values of the Garden City, the
Estate Management Scheme was set up. The purpose of the
Management Scheme and its importance to homeowners is to ensure
that homes and street scenes are kept in harmony with the original
design and concept of the town.
1.3. Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme (EMS) states that
extensions and alterations to existing buildings will only be allowed if
they are in keeping with the design, appearance, materials and
architectural detailing used in the existing building and do not have a
detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the surrounding area.
1.4. The application property is located within a terrace of 13 similarly
designed properties. None of these properties have rear dormer
windows. This property would be the first to have such an alteration in
this group of 13.
1.5. Policy EM1 aims for alterations to be in keeping with the existing
property and not harm the values and amenities of the area. It is
therefore essential that the uniformity in appearance of dwellings is
maintained; in particular those features which are visible from the street

2 of 4
Page 56

scene.
1.6. The proposed rear dormer is unacceptable in width, height, scale and
sitting. In the Garden City for roof alterations such as dormer windows,
the Council has approved a new policy approach within the EM area
which includes that consent will only be granted if the proposed
alteration, when viewed from any surrounding public vantage point does
not have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the
street scene and the wider amenities and values of the area.
1.7. The quality of the architecture in this terrace of 13 dwellings has
generally been maintained and it is of note that in July 2018, an
application, which assessed two individual and smaller dormer windows
covering less of the rear roof slope was approved (ref: 6/2018/1326/EM).
1.8. Although not implemented, the consent remains extant. In the officer’s
report in July 2018 it was stated: The proposed rear dormers would not
be visible from public vantage points. The appearance isn’t overbearing
to the rear as two smaller dormers are proposed rather than one large
dormer on a mid-terrace dwelling. It is clear from this assessment that a
larger dormer was not considered appropriate here.
1.9. Rather than two individual dormer windows as approved in July 2018,
the introduction of one elongated rear dormer would represent a more
dominating form of development to the rear roofslope of this property.
The elongated dormer would not read as a subordinate roof form within
the rear roof slope of the terrace as a whole. It would be more visible,
given its more solid and unbroken form and is considered to be harmful
to the amenities and values of the property itself and to the wider
surrounding area.
1.10. Views of the rear roofslope of the appeal property and its neighbours are
readily visible from the public footpath to the east of the site and
therefore an elongated dormer across most of the rear of the appeal
property would be very apparent causing significant harm to the
amenities and values of the area.
1.11. In comparison to the two rear dormers granted consent in July 2018, one
elongated dormer as proposed would be more visually intrusive than two
separate dormers given its larger size and more solid and bulky form.
From this public view point to the rear, the more solid roof form of the
elongated dormer on the appeal property and as part of the terrace as a
whole would be very apparent and would result in a more dominating
form of development.
1.12. In addition, the height of the elongated dormer would be at the ridge
height of the main roof and not set down. This is an unwelcome design. It
is good design practice to set any such roof additions down from the
main roof ridge so that the addition can read as a subordinate element
on the roof slope.
1.13. In previous correspondence the applicant comments on this design by
saying “We are unable to have a pitched roof or lower the roof line
further, as we are already having to lower first floor ceilings inside the
property to allow for enough headroom in the loft room. Every millimetre

3 of 4
Page 57

will count. The room will be fairly small inside and the design of a
straight across dormer will make such a huge difference to us inside the
house, giving us that little bit more space”. However, it is considered that
such a dormer is not appropriate and should not be allowed for the sake
of internal modifications.
1.14. No new or amended proposals are brought to the Council for
consideration, and for this reason no different conclusion is made on the
harmful impacts of the proposal. The rear dormer window would be
unacceptable by virtue of its width, height, scale and siting on the rear
roof slope of the dwelling which is overtly visible from a number of
properties in the area and from the public footpath to the east. The
dormer would result in a visually discordant and incongruous feature that
would be detrimental to the appearance of the house and wider area,
failing to maintain and enhance the amenities and values of the Garden
City in accordance with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.
1.15. The applicant has been advised to amend the proposal before
considering taken this same scheme back to any appeals panel.
Conclusion
The rear dormer window would be unacceptable by virtue of its width, scale and siting on the rear
roof slope of the dwelling which is overtly visible from an number of properties in the area and from
the public footpath to the east. The dormer would result in a visually discordant and incongruous
feature that would be detrimental to the appearance of the house and wider area, failing to maintain
and enhance the amenities and values of the Garden City in accordance with Policy EM1 of the
Estate Management Scheme.
Reasons for Refusal:
1.

The rear dormer window would be unacceptable by virtue of its width, height, scale
and siting on the rear roof slope of the dwelling which is overtly visible from an
number of properties in the area and from the public footpath to the east. The
dormer would result in a visually discordant and incongruous feature that would be
detrimental to the appearance of the house and wider area, failing to maintain and
enhance the amenities and values of the Garden City in accordance with Policy
EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS
2.
Plan
Number

Revision
Number

Details

Received Date

4416-P01

C

Plans & Elevations As
Proposed

1 February 2019

4416-OS2

Block Plan

1 February 2019

4416-OS1

Location Plan

1 February 2019

4416-E01

Plans & Elevations As
Existing

1 February 2019

Determined By:
Mr Michael Robinson
28 March 2019

4 of 4
Page 58

Agenda Item 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

